



ESTRATTO • EXCERPT

Contents • Preface • Abstracts • Authors



Leo S. Olschki 2022



Comitato di Direzione

Claudio Baraldi, José Antonio Cordón-García, Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, Luca Toschi (Direttore scientifico)

Comitato Scientifico

In considerazione della natura progettualmente dinamica di questa collana, si rinvia a:

www.scientiatqueusus.org | www.olschki.it

The texts in this volume were subjected to *double blind peer review*



On the Interplay of Images Imaginaries and Imagination in Science Communication

Edited by
Andreas Metzner-Szigeth

ESTRATTO • EXCERPT
Contents • Preface • Abstracts • Authors



Leo S. Olschki 2022

Tutti i diritti riservati

Casa Editrice Leo S. Olschki Viuzzo del Pozzetto, 8 50126 Firenze www.olschki.it

CONTENTS

Prej	face by Luca Toschi, Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, José Antonio Cordón García, Claudio Baraldi	Pag.	IX
1.	Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, Studying the Role of Visual Imaginary in Science Communication – Introduction to the Volume	»	1
2.	Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, Science Matters, But Why? – Clarifying the Nexus with Scientia atque Usus	»	19
3.	Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, Exploring the Interplay of Images, Imaginaries and Imagination in Science Communication – Basic Considerations	»	33
4.	Gerald Hüther, The Power of Inner Images – Insights from Neurobiology	»	49
5.	Xabier Insausti, From Plato's Cave to Digital Communication: Philosophical Reflections about the Role of Imagination	»	61
6.	MASSIMO BARTOLINI, The Books of Attention: On Awareness and Imagination in Life, Arts and Sciences	»	73
7.	Luca Toschi, Generative Communication Paradigm. Very Simple Prolegomena to Future Design and Implementation	»	87
8.	Andreas Böhn, Artificial Intelligence in German Literature of the Last Decade	»	101
9.	SELENA SAVIĆ, Pixels and Bandwidth: On Imaginaries of Travel in Data	»	111
10.	Tzung-wen Chen, Seeing is Believing: How Moore's Law Drives Semiconductor Innovations	»	123
11.	THOMAS HUNDT, Unrealistification – Virtual Reality as a Cultural Technology	»	137

CONTENTS

12.	Letizia Bollini, Images to Think and Tell: Visual Language in Scientific Discourse	Pag.	149
13.	EMILIANO GUARALDO, The Anthropocene and the Aesthetics of Planetary Abstraction	»	163
14.	VALENTINA MARCHESELLI, Building Habitable Worlds. Images and Imaginaries in Planetary Science	»	179
15.	Charudatta Navare, Challenging the Tyranny of T. Rex: A Critical Analysis of Visuals of Prehistoric Life	»	191
16.	Emanuel Mathias, Different Modes of Recognition – A Visual Approach Between Evolutionary Anthropology and the Arts \dots	»	201
17.	Stephan Schmidt-Wulffen – Elisabetta Rattalino, Artistic Practices and Scientific Visualization: Challenges of an Interdisciplinary Collaboration	»	215
18.	Waltraud Kofler Engl – Alexandra Budabin – Gaia Piccarolo, Cultural Heritage Imaginaries of Conflict in the Mountains Enabled by Digital Apps	»	227
19.	INGRID KOFLER, Heimat as Social Imagination or as Social Imaginary? South Tyrol and its Linguistic Lifeworlds	»	243
20.	ILARIA RICCIONI, Images and Experience. Singularity and Collective Narratives in the Interplay of Images, Imaginaries and Imagination	»	253
21.	ROLAND BENEDIKTER, What is Inter-Communicative Techno- Democracy? Transforming the Social Imaginary by Futures Literacy	»	269
22.	JOE RAVETZ, Visual Imagineering: Graphic Mind-Games for the Emerging Collective Climatic Intelligence	»	287
23.	CRISTINA ORSATTI, The Use of Visual Tools in the Territorial Community Plan of Valsugana and Bersntol – An Anthropological Approach to Sustainable Development and Planning	»	297
24.	Berenice Golding – Elizabeth F. Caldwell – Sarah Falcus, Health Communication through Picturebooks: Perspectives from Adult Family Members and Health Professionals on Children's Books about Dementia	»	315
25.	Eugenio Pandolfini – Lisa Capitini – Ilaria Marchionne – Marco Sbardella – Viola Davini, <i>Generative Communica</i> -		

CONTENTS

Science Communication can Promote Health Literacy	Pag.	327
26. Joost van Loon, Imaginaries of Risk Communication	»	343
27. Brian Rappert, Believing and Seeing on the Moon: The Closure and Continuation of Controversy	»	355
28. Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, How Prophecies Become Reality – Exploring the Interplay of Techno-Futures, Science Fiction and Utopian Thinking	»	371
Abstracts		407
Authors	»	421
Appendix		

PREFACE

The quality of the interplay of images, imaginaries and imagination in processes of science communication is of crucial importance. This is particularly true for joint projects and shared initiatives and with reference to its potential for stimulating, enabling and supporting scientists, professionals and citizens when working together or collaborating with one another, as for instance inspired by the generative communication approach. Hence, publishing the volume *On the Interplay of Images, Imaginaries and Imagination in Science Communication* in the series *Scientia atque Usus* is a fortunate decision.

As editors of the series we would like to express our appreciation and thank all colleagues who contributed to this book. A special thanks goes to Andreas Metzner-Szigeth as the responsible editor of this anthology. We hope this book may receive a great response and promote constructive impacts for both, science and society.

Florence, October 24, 2022

Luca Toschi, Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, José Antonio Cordón García, Claudio Baraldi

ABSTRACTS

Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, Studying the Role of Visual Imaginary in Science Communication – Introduction to the Volume

The three parts of this paper are meant to pave the way for understanding the entire publication. This is carried out, in the first part, by introducing guiding questions, delineating the topic and representing ways of accessing the complex intertwined ties connecting science, communication, visuals and imagination. The second part presents the contributions to the book following a mixed strategy of offering appetizers, trying to evoke curiosity on the part of the readers, and, simultaneously, summarizing essential contents, since the purpose of the series of examinations is to prepare the ground for more applied research streams. Generating an outlook by combining components of a resume with considerations about individual scientific interests and societal research demands is the purpose of the third part. The paper closes with outlining four areas of further research about the interplay of images, imaginaries and imagination directed towards: I. Organizational cultures and leadership styles, II. Futures studies and scenario techniques, III. Digital communication and virtual reality, and IV. Sustainability science and transition perspectives.

Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, Science Matters, But Why? – Clarifying the Nexus with Scientia atque Usus

Dealing with the question of the connections between the development of science and the tasks of science communication this essay presents reflections about relationships, developments and approaches. The first part explores scientific transformations, introduces the idea of transformative sciences, and discusses the implications of both. How to cope with the sciences' dilemma of being simultaneously part of the solution and of the problem is the focus of the second part. The third part analyses opportunities for redirecting scientific practice. Finally the text examines capacities of generative approaches in their relation to the capacities of the interplay of images, imaginaries and imagination by referring to the example of «particles in love».

Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, Exploring the Interplay of Images, Imaginaries and Imagination in Science Communication – Basic Considerations

How can we detect and observe the unfolding dynamics of images, imaginaries, imagination and their interplay in science communication? Wich are the most suitable ways to analyse and understand their patterns and movements? Which kind of opportunities do we have to make good use of our insights?

Despite the diversity of topics, dealt with either more interested in theoretical reflections, programmatic considerations or practice-oriented descriptions, all contributions to this book have one thing in common: the intention to put these generative dynamics in the focus of our attention and to elaborate answers to these questions – some more tentative, others more definite.

These approaches are of utmost importance as they identify emerging futures early enough to enhance our abilities and assess the societal consequences of new developments in science and technology. They help us make up our minds about our preferences and choices thereby shaping the ongoing dynamics of innovation according to our values.

GERALD HÜTHER, The Power of Inner Images – Insights from Neurobiology

Any living system, no matter if it is an individual cell, a complete organism, a community, or a certain kind of society, is provided with an inner structure and a specifically inner relationship structure of those sub-systems and components constituting the system as a whole. This internal organisational structure is built in the course of the development of the system. Usually, it can be maintained despite disturbances and threats to the inner structure by outside influences. In the human brain, neuronal connectivity patterns are established and shaped by experience-dependent plasticity. At the most complex level, such a pattern in the prefrontal cortex is the biological foundation of individual images of oneself and its embeddedness in the world. With the help of these inner images, a human decides what is essential for him/herself, what to deal with, what to support, and what to focus on. The fact that today these inner imagination images are disregarded as unreal and unimportant highlights how much their power is currently still underestimated. The human brain is much more social and cultural than previously thought. It can neither be understood by its inner structure nor by its way of functioning. It can be understood in isolation and separately from the structuring influences of the social community within which each human has been growing up and living. More than in all other natural-scientific disciplines, the current neurobiological search for insight proves that no clear, 'objective' separation between subject and object is possible. The allegedly objective investigator always shapes the object subjectively, however, he is also the analysed object, a subject using his/her brain in a certain way.

XABIER INSAUSTI, From Plato's Cave to Digital Communication: Philosophical Reflections about the Role of Imagination

We humans have a remarkable ability to imagine a reality beyond its immediate presence, to think of new «worlds» through which life can be expanded. Life is infinite, and that is because the imagination makes it possible to break through the immediate horizon, push on, and think further. This ability can deceive us (people); it can lead us in the wrong direction, i.e., it lets us think up horizons that become more unjust and inhumane. In this essay, there will be developed some thoughts about the role that imagination plays in human life. «Utopias» is the name given to the products of imagination. But when utopias «get on the wrong track», dystopias are produced. Today, a new kind of horizon has emerged, a new horizon that will bring together a society that has lost its previous values, does not believe in «humanism», and tries to survive in a world with no apparent reason or «rationality». Digital 'communication' emerged with the power of a substitute capable of attracting young people's attention and has triumphed. The past no longer exists in this world; history has lost its meaning. This has brought new problems, new imbalances, new dangers, and new opportunities. It undoubtedly forces us to sharpen our critical minds to seek a safe ground that can order and organize the new situation if we do not want to succumb. Imagination is more necessary than ever.

MASSIMO BARTOLINI, The Books of Attention: On Awareness and Imagination in Life, Arts and Sciences

Supreme attention is a holy virtue. This state of mind can be understood as being perfectly aware of and being fully present in space and time. Mindfulness, as another expression for this state, means being aware of the «here and now» in all its details, even those normally imperceptible to our five common senses. In this text I have «invited» authors who have devoted themselves to both, enhanced awareness as a tool for investigation and the language that manifests, trains and produces it. The relationship between awareness and imagination in art and science, often considered as an excess of awareness, has recently revealed some possible drawbacks. An excess of «fantastic imagination» in any area of life, from news media to politics to social studies, may also contribute to the phenomenon of fake news or other countless mental pathologies of recent times. Capitalist societies instigate an excess of «fantastic imagination» under the designation of liberalism as if to uproot people from their own, original standards, values and perspectives. In this short, and possibly sometimes a little too associative essay, I show examples of artists, scientists and writers, who have pursued the practice of supreme attention in «true imagination» as a means to actually intervene in real and dreamed (visionary) life by simply uniting these two lifeforms using justice as a thread.

Luca Toschi, Generative Communication Paradigm. Very Simple Prolegomena to Future Design and Implementation

Planetary humanity is experiencing a system leap encompassing all the structural and superstructural aspects of our reality. We live in a time of complexity, where the traditional relationship between prediction possibilities and design logic and techniques is distorted. What kind of design should we use for complexity? This contribution seeks to find answers to this question, rethinking design as a process that – although defined, accurate, technically structured – is able, in a continuous coming and going from ideas to things, to transform the product into a knowledge tool. We live in an era of inevitable experimentation that is reconstructing the relationship between the imaginary and realization of what is imagined: the project becomes product, the product becomes project. Digital is at the same time the effect and cause of this radical transformation, but we lack a digital culture capable of supporting experimentation unbound to predefined objectives, which supports the value of exploration, the coexistence of uniqueness and multiplicity, that fosters variety and redundancy, divergence, conflict. To free the human being from the progressive mechanical automation that big data society is imposing, digital must become a tool. Traditional transmissive, hierarchical, emulative, mechanistic communication denies the many resources offered by a complex reality, and thus, a new communicative paradigm is urgent: we call it «Generative Communication».

Andreas Böhn, Artificial Intelligence in German Literature of the Last Decade

The text highlights the relevance of fictional representations of Artificial Intelligence (AI) in contemporary German literature and their connections to the public discourses on technological innovations. As the industry and various aspects of everyday living are increasingly informatized and automatized, reality seems to approach established anticipations of AI in the arts, media and literature. The influence of culturally and historically preformed conceptions and images becomes apparent in Frank Schätzing's latest thriller *Die Tyrannei des Schmetterlings* (*The Tyranny of the Butterfly*), Ursula Poznanski's young adult fiction *Erebos 2*, and Emma Braslawsky's novel *Die Nacht war bleich, die Lichter blinkten* (*The Night was Pale, the Lights were Flashing*). It also becomes apparent how these literary texts interact with actual public debates.

SELENA SAVIĆ, Pixels and Bandwidth: On Imaginaries of Travel in Data

The imaginary of travelling in data traces interdisciplinary concerns for technical artefacts. Focusing on data collection on radio signals gathered by a community of radio amateurs and enthusiasts, informational tools – «data observatories» – render signals commensurable through their different visual representations. What can pixel distribution in a sound spectrogram tell us about a radio signal? Following Haraway's insistence on the importance and persistence of

vision as an embodied gaze enabling a new doctrine of objectivity, this study proceeds by extracting and organizing radio signal qualities using a machine-learning algorithm to expose them again to the visual faculty of subjective observers. Vision and travel constitute methodical tools to unfold disciplinary concerns starting from specific data in a way that favours interactional expertise.

Tzung-wen Chen, Seeing and Believing: How Moore's Law Drives Semiconductor Innovations

Moore's law, which sets the pace of technological evolution in the semiconductor industry, has been prophesied to die. How this law still keeps itself alive to drive semiconductor innovations is so miraculous that it can hardly be explained by social constructivism. In this chapter, a visual approach is proposed to probe the magic function of Moore's law in the case of FinFET technology, a 3D structural innovation in the 21st century. It is argued that time-dependent Moore's Law can combine two different versions of interpretation on eidos: 'form and propensity' and 'concretization of imagination' to transform technological imaginations into periodically innovative practices. The visual approach is to analyze drawings and figures in patents. The first FinFET device was patented in the early 2000s. In the patent, the device structure is depicted with lines only, without shade or colour. A simple image of the original structure serves as a primitive form that stimulates further imagination on 3D device design. Following this patent, more innovations are produced by East Asian semiconductor manufacturers such as TSMC and Samsung. These companies in the competition have their innovative practices, which are outcomes of their dispositions, as seen in their patents with more complicated and artful drawings. The dispositions also contribute to visual intelligence on a collective level. The periodical innovations reveal competitive nature among the dispositions, which has an imminent propensity synchronized to the rhythm of Moore's Law. In short, Moore's Law has its visual signification in the slope of the curve and the scale of device numbers that is an institutional and structural imaginary of semiconductor technology.

Тномая Hundt, Unrealistification – Virtual Reality as a Cultural Technology

Reality surrounds us humans and seems normal to us. Unreality, however, fascinates us, and always has. Whenever we think of something, it becomes somehow real. As soon as we write it down, draw it or model it on the computer, it becomes even closer to reality. Many of our cultural techniques explicitly do not serve to record facts, but to try out something previously undiscovered. Digital tools, especially 3D real-time engines such as «Unreal» or «Unity», are now so advanced and highly available that they can be understood as cultural techniques. With a pencil you can note down facts, but also sketch a fantastic world. With a hammer you can drive in a nail or create a sculpture. As an architect and designer, I have been using 3D software for more than 25 years, especially for the playful

and intuitive development of spaces and experiences. The paper offers a reflection on the general topic based on my work.

Letizia Bollini, Images to Think and Tell – Visual Language in Scientific Discourse

Whether mental, oneiric, diagrammatic, symbolic, sketched, photographic, (hyper)realistic or abstract, images play a fundamental role in the processes of imagination, conception, observation, and communication of thoughts, concepts, and phenomena. They are powerful means for documenting, describing, and explaining visible events as well as tools for translating hypotheses and conceptualisations in order to verify them or share them with others, or for describing ideas and phenomena in the non-visible sphere through graphic language. Indeed, within the scientific discourse and its method, images have a crucial function in the processes of thought, discovery and understanding. If we extend the scope of scientific discourse not only to the production of knowledge, but also to its dissemination, «graphicacy» - the ability to encode and decode information according to visual language - becomes a critical skill for accessing and participating in a debate that has become increasingly public and widespread. The essay traces the history of some of the paradigmatic discoveries and theories in which scientists have used images as a medium for research, understanding and dissemination.

EMILIANO GUARALDO, The Anthropocene and the Aesthetics of Planetary Abstraction

The notion of the Anthropocene presupposed since its initial formulations the possibility to represent planetary anthropogenic environmental change through methods of data collection and imaging techniques of satellite reconnaissance, remote sensing and data mining, computer simulations and modelling. The popularization of the Anthropocene paradigm has prompted researchers working within the earth system sciences, climatology, geology, and international scientific bodies to evolve and improve existing forms of visual communication and public outreach initiatives. The reception of the Anthropocene paradigm by visual artists, art institutions, natural history museums, design studios, and various other cultural and aesthetic practices has generated - and is continuing to produce – a large and diverse corpus of arts-based and research-oriented visualizations of climate change. In this chapter, the author will introduce the subject of geo-scientific Anthropocene visualizations and will define a working corpus of the most relevant artistic projects that have expanded or called into question the socio-ecological visualizations originating in the geosciences. In particular, the essay will focus on recent works by American painter Diane Burko (Seeing Climate Change, 2021) and by Japanese experimental audio-visual artist Ryoji Ikeda (Data-Verse, 2019). While creatively incorporating the technological and data-driven aesthetics of climate change science, these artists ask us also to reflect on how the ubiquity and pervasiveness of climate data and satellite imagery are effectively re-configuring the way we perceive the planet and the environmental crises today.

VALENTINA MARCHESELLI, Building Habitable Worlds – Images and Imaginaries in Planetary Science

This chapter deals with images and imaginaries of outer space. In particular, it focuses on how the concept of "habitability" (i.e. the property of a planet to host life) is characterized, represented and circulated within and without the scientific community. In the first part of the essay, different images and imaginaries of planets as habitable places and the research practices to which they are connected are spelled out. First, the focus is on the so-called «habitable zone», an imaginary disk around the star in which the temperature might allow for liquid water to exist. Then the focus is on the search for «Earth-like planets» orbiting other, not necessarily Sun-like, stars and on the exploration of extreme 'habitats on Earth' and the «weird» forms of life that thrive in them. Lastly, attention is paid at how astrobiologists portray exoplanets as places to be inhabited one day. Circulating a variety of representations provides the astrobiology community with a grey area in which tensions are allowed and can be debated without necessarily being solved. Wondering whether a certain Solar System body or exoplanet is habitable should not be considered a «controversy», as it does not aim to achieve closure. On the contrary, imaginaries of habitability purposefully allow multiplicity. Different types of habitability and different ways of imaging the kinds of worlds that might be found out there confront each other and allow a multiplicity that strengthens – rather than weakens – the social and epistemic configuration of the astrobiology community and the public interest in the search for life elsewhere in the universe. The concept of habitability contributes to building an interdisciplinary community by providing a grey zone that offers the opportunity for different methodologies, interests, and expectations to co-exist.

CHARUDATTA NAVARE, Challenging the Tyranny of T. rex: A Critical Analysis of Visuals of Prehistoric Life

Nineteenth-century biologist Ernst Haeckel's tree of life depicted «lower» organisms at the base of the tree and «advanced» organisms progressively higher. The tree illustrates that evolution is a drive towards greater complexity, synonymous with progress. Modern biological thinking that construes evolution as a diversification process is increasingly challenging this view. While modern biology textbooks explicitly state that all extant organisms are equally evolved, I argue that the prior assumptions of hierarchy implicitly shape the visual rhetoric. The particular choices of exemplary organisms from different taxa and periods originate from and reinforce the underlying belief of «primitive» and «advanced» organisms. As Reynolds (2008) has shown, Haeckel's selection of Amoeba as the

representative of protists, which remains popular in textbooks, was partly due to its «simple» appearance. Through a discourse analysis of scientific illustrations, I show that similar motivations might guide prehistoric life's portrayal. I focus on the dinosaurs, which (in a sense arbitrarily) have become one of the prototypical organisms of the past. The rhetorical choices while depicting dinosaurs, such as their fierce expressions, portray the dinosaurs as «dominating» the prehistoric landscape. Other choices make the dinosaurs appear similar to present-day reptiles. The visuals of mammalian ancestors (such as therapsids, who arguably «ruled the earth» before dinosaurs) remain rare. The illustrations depicting early mammals are often shown to cower with fear as dinosaurs «ruled». Recent research has challenged the conventional wisdom of dinosaurs as an impediment to the diversification of mammals. Finally, I consider the implications of the visual rhetoric of evolution and what it suggests about our place on earth.

EMANUEL MATHIAS, Different Modes of Recognition – A Visual Approach between Evolutionary Anthropology and the Arts

The artistic research project *On the Margins of the Field* is an aesthetic observation of research in primatology, a field of science that investigates great apes behaviours in their natural environment. What makes a human? Where lie the similarities and differences between humans and primates? These are questions that occupy the researchers in their work. By an artistic observation of the second-order, the researcher's internal and external movements of approach and distance to its research subject are being put into relation to each other. Traces of implicit knowledge of anthropological research are being inquired about based on photography and video recordings from the field. It is being proposed that a new view of the visual artefacts of knowledge and an extended perspective on the observer's relation to its research subject – the primate – opens up. The images are examined for their potential for the «Optical Unconscious». *On the Margins of the Field* uses the artistic resources of image production to comment on the practice of anthropological research. This text discusses the imaginative potential of scientific images through artistic reinterpretation with concrete examples.

Stephan Schmidt-Wulffen – Elisabetta Rattalino, Artistic Practices and Scientific Visualization: Challenges of an Interdisciplinary Collaboration

The pragmatic turn in science clarified the constructive character of scientific exploration: Scientific knowledge is not inherent in reality. It is a social construction. In 1995, Pickering described the research process as a «dance of agency» in which the scientist's intention constantly adapts to a «mangle» of practice. This process depends not only on formula or discourse; it also implies pictures and (mental) images. The research project, of which this paper examines and comments first results, tried to document the possible contribution of art in challenging the construction of such images in scientific research. The paper will present

selected visual and theoretical results of an interdisciplinary research project developed within an academic context. Contributing also to the emerging field of image studies at the intersection of art and sciences, this project involved a team of scientists, a designer, an artist and art and media theorists, and it aimed at assessing the diverse role visual arts can play in affecting scientists' relationship with their visual production. Collaborations between artists, designers and scientists in institutional research contexts have acquired increasing consideration since the 1990s. Despite the over 60 years and the highly different circumstances that separate the first experiences from more recent initiatives, these experiments still strive to move beyond the humanity-science disciplinary gap indicated by English physical chemist Charles Pierce Snow in 1959, bringing alternative research cultures and pieces of knowledge into all fields of human enquiry and moving towards post-disciplinary approaches. Discussing the result of the research project, this contribution will assess visual arts' limits and possibilities in proposing image-making practices for the communication of scientific knowledge.

Waltraud Kofler Engl – Alexandra Budabin – Gaia Piccarolo, Cultural Heritage Imaginaries of Conflict in the Mountains Enabled by Digital Apps

This chapter considers the communication processes between science and the public by examining the use of digital apps for cultural heritage. To illustrate the interplay between images, imaginaries, and imagination in science communication, the focus of the chapter is on dynamics particular to communicating cultural heritage related to conflict in the mountains. It presents some of the debates on using digital apps that consider the aesthetic, practical, and narrative aspects of using virtual images (including maps and 3D renderings), oral histories, and interactive elements to enrich the experience of visiting a physical site of cultural heritage. It explores how digital apps offer new possibilities for mediating our relationship to cultural heritage in the landscape. However, we also delineate how digital apps may limit our understanding, fuel «disaster tourism» and pose risks to the fragile structures of a former battleground in the high alps. The chapter offers ideas for resolving various tensions around protecting the landscape and navigating contentious themes in this cultural heritage. It applies lessons to the case study of the Written in the Landscape project that will produce a digital app drawing on archaeological, sociological, and historical materials to present new knowledge around World War I conflict in the Sesto Dolomites.

INGRID KOFLER, Heimat as Social Imagination or as Social Imaginary? – South Tyrol and its Linguistic Lifeworlds

«Heimat» does not to the German word of 'home' or 'homeland' but to a much more complex concept. Heimat has both a subjective meaning and a social imaginary. The concept of Heimat is experiencing a new revival. In recent years, it has been increasingly perceived as an opposition to change and modernization.

Thus, the concept of Heimat experiences multiple definitions and perceptions, demonstrating its potential to highlight controversy and provide keys to understanding social phenomena. For the German-speaking minority of the Autonomous Province of Bozen-Bolzano, the concept refers to a particular meaning and is part of a collective imaginary supported by cultural productions. In this case, Heimat as social imaginary holds together the community in a binary lifeworld divided by linguistic groups.

ILARIA RICCIONI, Images and Experience – Singularity and Collective Narratives in the Interplay of Images, Imaginaries and Imagination

An aware relationship between personal experience and the wider society is part of what C. W. Mills defines as «the sociological imagination». It is, indeed, a sort of social creativity that connects experience to the social structure of a society, as the capacity to transform personal troubles in social issues is due to social imagination. In this perspective, the generative dynamics unfolding within the interplay of images, imaginaries and imagination can be recaptured in the meanings enacted by individuals by means of experience and by means of social narratives. In this paper, the aim will be to consider how a visual society, as the contemporary one, can comprehend and leave space for free-thinking and social imagination connected to a personal level of experiences. In other words, how can this pre-thought area, as the realm of creativity that leads to connecting the experience to sense-making in the form of images, be preserved from atrophy in a society that relentlessly produces images? The insights suggested by arts in elaborating and combining social experience can be somehow considered in opposition to the production of imagination and images on an industrial scale. There is a symbolic power of images that contributes both to organize experience and to build up meanings in the human imagination. Such symbolic power is highly present in theatre and poetry as they can create proper images from what they express. This paper will make use of the insights supplied by the arts to define or track the generative dynamics enacted to recapture the human capacity of creating images and meanings from within.

ROLAND BENEDIKTER, What is Intercommunicative Techno-Democracy? - Transforming the Social Imaginary by Futures Literacy

Imagining the upcoming techno-democracy of 2030 means working on the present by means of a broadly organized creative dialogue on the future with the goal of transforming social and technological disruptions into progress for society. The methodological approach for using individual and social imaginaries to create a functioning techno-democracy built around tools of accessible, participatory and inclusive intercommunication is «Futures Literacy» (FL), as developed by the UNESCO in cooperation with other global bodies and the applied social sciences. FL means empowering people to become literate to use the future for

the present. FL uses imaginaries, including images of the future existing in the present, to surface, screen and anticipate a variety of competing (and often mutually complementary) visions of the future in order to socially interrelate them by a scientifically organized dialogue. The goal is to increase individual and social preparedness, foster mental resilience and broaden the spectrum of options available in the present. In so doing and in including «Tech Literacy», Futures Literacy by itself already is a tool of intercommunicative techno-democracy.

JOE RAVETZ, Visual Imagineering: Graphic Mind-games For the Emerging Collective Climatic Intelligence

On the frontiers between multiple knowledges – scientific, technical, cultural, archetypical, economic, entrepreneurial and so on – images, imaginaries and imagination each have essential roles to play in a deeper and wider «collective intelligence». Here we introduce a fourth dynamic, one of «imagineering». Just as «engineering» is about the process and skills for creating physical constructions, imagineering is about the process and skills for enabling «imaginaries and imaginations». This chapter is a demonstration of imagineering in practice, using simple real-time graphic storylines as the point of investigation. It starts with the theme of «tipping points» (from a trans-disciplinary workshop), where systems changes are not only material, but cognitive in the minds of multiple stakeholders. This opens a door to the «mind-games» which explore the roles and strategies of these stakeholders through the Covid-19 pandemic, visualized as chess, cards and other familiar games. Thirdly there are topical applications with the current agenda of climate change, disruptive events such as wars, and the possibility of a «collective climatic intelligence». Some conclusions emerge: both for the practical process of «visual foresight», and for the role of visual thinking in mapping collective intelligence pathways, «from smart to wise».

CRISTINA ORSATTI, The Use of Visual Tools in the Territorial Community Plan of Valsugana and Bersntol – An Anthropological Approach to Sustainable Development and Planning

Planning is traditionally based on quantitative socio-economic studies, lacking socio-economic-cultural depth and an explorative dimension. In 2012, an interdisciplinary team designed innovative tools for territorial planning, which linked spatial environmental and socio-economic strategic planning to community knowledge of the place, needs and development visions. It aimed to integrate local and expert knowledge in a strategic landscape development plan. This paper discusses the role of visual tools in interdisciplinary and anthropological fieldwork to support evidence-based analyses, planning and development. It shows how maps and questions could facilitate fieldwork and become means to enhance a collective and shared vision of a sustainable future in the area – when integrated with a general interdisciplinary framework. The maps presented have been

designed and tailored to the area of Valsugana and Bersntol, collecting data in fieldwork aimed at shaping the PTC – the Community Valley Territorial Plan 2010-2012 in Trentino. In this plan, for the first time, an anthropological and interdisciplinary approach to evidence-based planning was used to explore the area's weaknesses, strengths, and potentials and the state and future of its landscape. During fieldwork, visual tools were used to interview local informants, experts, and administrators around specific themes. They were instrumental and innovative in collecting objective data and subjective perceptions. They provided information on the territory's assets, economy, spatial organisation, and ways to go forward. Ortho photos proved helpful, easy to use and immediate in this context of data collection to generate communication amongst stakeholders, and experts, prompting strategic thinking and subsequent intervention. For this reason, an experimental, anthropological, interdisciplinary, explorative and applied research approach could offer a replication model.

Berenice Golding – Elizabeth F. Caldwell – Sarah Falcus, Health Communication through Picturebooks: Perspectives from Adult Family Members and Health Professionals on Children's Books about Dementia

Many children know someone with dementia and experience the effects of the condition upon family life, and this has led to an increased demand for resources to support and educate children about dementia, including a growing number of picturebooks. Picturebooks about illnesses such as dementia are likely to be examined, purchased and read by/with an adult, often a child's parent or carer. This study, therefore, explores the readerly responses of adults who may buy, recommend and read these books with children. Using a focus group methodology, we explore the reactions of adult carers of people living with dementia and healthcare professionals to a range of picturebooks about dementia. The focus group discussions showed that both carers and health professionals supported the books' use of mechanistic metaphors for explaining dementia to children, but they also recognised the lack of diversity found in the images of people living with dementia. Finally, the participants felt strongly that the emotional effect on the adult reading the picturebook was crucial to the reading experience with the child and indeed to the choice or use of the books at all. Our findings demonstrate the importance of images and emotions in communicating health information to children through picturebooks.

EUGENIO PANDOLFINI – LISA CAPITINI – ILARIA MARCHIONNE – MARCO SBARDELLA – VIOLA DAVINI, Generative Communication Paradig to Study the Imaginary about Childbirth – How Science Communication can Promote Health Literacy

The infosphere is transforming our lives: the increasing spread of disinformation creates many difficulties in recognizing the truthfulness and authorita-

tiveness of information, photos, and images. In most cases, we deal with the absence of a literacy base on specific topics and the lack of tools and skills that help people orient themselves in increasingly intricate mass media communication. Such information contributes substantially to constructing imaginaries that often do not correspond to reality. Imaginaries can lead to the adoption of wrong and potentially harmful behaviours, especially in terms of health. The research group works to re-establish a constant and prolific dialogue among doctors, researchers, medical staff and patients for a healthy society. In this perspective, this paper introduces the project "Who is afraid of Childbirth", realized in collaboration with Hospital-University Careggi in Florence, which aim is to study what is pregnant women's perception about childbirth and how it is influeced by the media and the social relations (partners and families) in order to define more effective communication strategies and to enhance the level of health literacy.

JOOST VAN LOON, Imaginaries of Crisis Communication

Science is no longer what we were taught it used to be. Whilst – at least since humans have started writing history – planet earth is facing unprecedented challenges that may result at the end of the world-as-we-know-it, there is simultaneously a growing and even apocalyptic sense of our growing impotence to turn the tide. Franco Berardi's concept of impotence is indeed a highly adept tool for understanding how crises are communicated and perceived today. In this contribution, I will analyse one meme that can function as a useful example to expose the impotence of crisis communication and the banality of our apocalyptic predicament that this engenders. The «ironic» over coding of the meme, which signals a series of crises (Covid, economic recession, climate change) in the form of three sequential tidal waves, is both an affirmation of a critique of our lack of concern for the bigger picture as well as a withdrawal of commitment, exposing the nihilistic core of impotence. I will contextualise this meme with a reflection on a «Risk Society 2.0», which is characterised by an implosion of epistemic practices and a corresponding abnegation of responsibilities.

BRIAN RAPPERT, Believing and Seeing on the Moon: The Closure and Continuation of Controversy

By way of understanding the generative dynamics between images, imaginaries and imagination, this chapter examines one case: the contestations about whether the photographic and visual evidence for the US manned Apollo lunar landings of the 1960s and 1970s were faked. More specifically, it considers how those partaking in disputes have marshalled a role for imagination in interpreting the photographic and video images. Against the longstanding doubt voiced about the status of the images, this chapter assessing how notions of imagination are mobilized as well as their consequences for whether it is possible and who is able to assess the evidential status of images. As elaborated, imagination is marshalled

as a resource in varied attempts to both close and resist closure of meaning making by those across a range of positions.

Andreas Metzner-Szigeth, How Prophecies Become Reality – Exploring the Interplay of Techno-Futures, Science Fiction and Utopian Thinking

The paper examines the role of literary, artistic and media utopias within societal discourses concerning the development of technology. It specifically addresses the interaction between the performance of these three components of societal discourses with the elaboration of scientific approaches toward the future. Focusing on the genre of science fiction, it shows that the design of negative (,dys'topian) and positive (,eu'topian) scenarios in novels, art, movies does not only represent a valid examination of futures but has a significant impact on its form. Taking up movements and moods within society, they represent «soft» factors that – in their function as driving forces – are as effective and consequential as 'hard' factors. Thus, studying the future making potential of «soft» factors offers, complementary insights, that an analysis of the 'hard' rational-scientific, political and economic factors cannot provide. Literary, artistic, and media utopias enter a complex interaction with science in general and futures research in particular (and equally well with technology assessment, science and technology studies and similar interdisciplinary future-oriented academic endeavours). Against this background, it becomes evident that literary approaches toward the future unleash important (indirect, mediating) impacts on the processes shaping technical developments. Furthermore, they seem to exert a decisive influence on the social acceptance of far-reaching technical developments (like genetic engineering or artificial intelligence) and the framing of schemes for public funding of science (like the Horizon 2020 program of the European Union). These very factors, acceptance and framing, are of utmost importance for aligning and shaping actual innovation pathways. We can conclude that the stimulant power of imaginative futures and their capacity to alter realities is of utmost importance.

AUTHORS

Andreas Metzner-Szigeth

Full Professor in Sociology of Culture and Communication, Faculty of Design and Art, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano, Italy. He studied social sciences, biology and philosophy and received his PhD in 1991 with a thesis about social-ecological systems theory. In 2000 he obtained his habilitation with a project about interdisciplinary risk research and communication. Andreas has been Full Professor of Sustainability Science at Bochum University of Applied Sciences, Germany (2012-16), Visiting Professor of Philosophy at the University of Vienna, Austria (2007-08) and Katowice, Poland (2009-10, 2011-12) and Holder of the Visiting Chair for Studies in Science, Technology and Society (STS) at the University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU) in San Sebastian, Spain (2004-07). Andreas started his academic career as Assistant Professor at Brandenburg University of Technology in Cottbus, Germany (1994-99). As an entrepreneur and executive manager, he has acquired proficiency in consulting activities and evaluation procedures. He has a broad record of peer-reviewed scientific publications. He held several positions as a Senior Researcher in multiple academic institutions, European research networks and international projects. He is particularly interested in issues that affect the interplay between science, business, politics and the public.

Webpage: https://www.unibz.it/en/faculties/design-art/academic-staff/person/36698-andreas-bernhard-josef-metzner-szigeth

GERALD HÜTHER

Dr. rer. nat., Dr. med. habil., Neurobiologist, is Founder and Chairman of the Academy for the Unfolding of Human Potentials. He studied biology and received a doctorate in neurobiology at Leipzig University, Germany. He obtained his habilitation at the Medical Faculty, Göttingen University. He carried out scientific activities at the Zoological Institutes of the Universities in Leipzig and Jena, as a Heisenberg scholarship holder at the Max-Planck Institute of Experimental Medicine, and as head of the Neurobiological Research Department at the Psychiatric Hospital of Göttingen University. His scientific fields are: the influence of early experiences on brain development, effects of fear and stress, and the meaning of emotional reactions. He has written numerous scientific publications and popular-scientific works.

Webpage: www.gerald-huether.de

AUTHORS

XABIER INSAUSTI UGARRIZA

Professor in Theory of Knowledge at the University of the Basque County (UPV/EHU) in Donostia/San Sebastián, Spain. He obtained his doctorate in Philosophy at Ludwig-Maximilians-University of Munich, Germany in 1989 and is focused on German Idealism and Critical Theory. He has been Visiting Professor of Philosophy at the University of Chile, Santiago de Chile. In 2011 he did research at the Center for Basque Studies at the University of Nevada, Reno, USA and was Director of the Summer Course 'Euskal Herria. Errealitatea et Utopia' in San Sebastian. Between 2012 and 2014 he directed the research group 'Inmanenacia y Filosofía' at the Basque University. He translated works of Hegel, Adorno and Freud into Basque, among others and has written various articles and books on the topics of his research.

Webpage: https://www.ehu.eus/eu/web/hezkuntza-filosofia-antropologia-fakultatea/insausti-ugarriza-xabier

Massimo Bartolini

Artist living and working in Cecina, Italy. He attended the Istituto Tecnico per Geometri B. Buontalenti in Livorno and the Accademia of Fine Arts in Florence. Currently he is teaching at Accademia di Belle Arti di Bologna and NABA Milan. Since 1993 he has participated in numerous exhibitions in Italy and abroad: among the group exhibition there are; Biennale di Venezia, 1999, 2009, 2013; Valencia 2001; Shangai 2006, 2012; Sao Paolo 2002; Pontevedra. 2004 Pune 2016; Yinchuan, 2018; Bangkok, 2020; and the Documenta in Kassel 2012; Selected solo show are: On Identikit Csac Parma, 2020. Manifesta 12 (collateral event) "Caudu e Fridu", Palazzo Oneto, Palermo (I), 2018. "4 organs" Fondazione Merz, Torino, (I). 2017. "Studio Matters+1" Fruitmarket Gallery Edimburgo (SC) e SMAK Ghent (B),2013. "Serce na Dloni", Centre of Contemporary Art "Znaki Czasu", Torun, (PL), 2013. Hum Auditorium Arte, Roma (I) / MARCO, Vigo, (E); 2012. Museu Serralves Porto (P), Ikon Gallery Birmingham (GB), 2007. GAM di Torino (I), 2005. Museum Abteiberg, Mönchengladbach (D), 2002.

 $We bpages: https://www.massimodecarlo.com/artist/2/bam-massimo-bartolini\ and\ https://www.frithstreetgallery.com/artists/17-massimo-bartolini/$

Luca Toschi

Full Professor of Sociology of Cultural and Communicative Processes. Author of *La Comunicazione Generativa* (Apogeo, 2011), he conceived and promoted the Generative Communication Paradigm in all areas of his work. In 1991 he founded *Centro Ricerche Applicazione Informatica all'Analisi dei Testi* (CRAIAT), at the data center of the University of Florence, established with support from IBM-SEMEA, IBM Foundation Italy, Italian Ministry of Cultural Heritage and other public and private entities. Today it has become the *Scientia Atque Usus Research Center for Gen*

erative Communication. He is the scientific coordinator of the Lab Center for Generative Communication at the technological pole called PIN. He is coordinator of the Master course of studies in Medical-Scientific and Health Services Communication and directing editor of the transdisciplinary series 'Scientia atque Usus', Leo S. Olschki Publishing House. Over the last 30 years, Luca Toschi has worked as a consultant for governmental entities, enterprises, companies, public and private organizations and, with the support of his team of researchers, he has explored the broad field of communication for technology transfer in numerous areas. He is committed to strong community building based on shared knowledge and developing communication able to generate common projects among subjects with different missions and visions to enrich and reinforce all involved parties with regard to their cultural, social, economic and political roles in the fields of health, sustainability, rural development and well being, cultural heritage and innovation processes.

Webpage: https://www.sau-centroricerche.org/eng/

Andreas Böhn

Full Professor in Literature and Media Studies at the Karlsruhe Institute of Technology (KIT), Karlsruhe, Germany. He is the author or co-author of five monographs, has edited or co-edited six academic books, and written about 70 articles. He has published widely on intertextuality and intermediality, mimesis, fictionality and metafiction in literature, film and other arts and media. His current research interests include media nostalgia and the relation of technology and culture in contemporary literature. During his career, he was a Guest Lecturer at the University of Waterloo/Ontario, Canada; the National University in Bogotà, Colombia; University of Sarajevo, Bosnia-Hercegovina; University of Dschang, Cameroon; Beijing Institute of Technology, China; Tongji University, Shanghai, China. He also was Max-Kade-guest Professor at the University of Georgia in Athens/GA, USA.

Webpage: https://www.geistsoz.kit.edu/germanistik/boehn.php

SELENA SAVIĆ

Head of the PhD Program *Make/Sense* and Lecturer at the Institute of Experimental Design and Media Cultures (IXDM) at the FHNW Academy of Art and Design in Basle, Switzerland. She studied architecture at the University of Belgrade and media design at the Piet Zwart Institute in Rotterdam, Netherlands. She received her PhD from Ecole Polytechnique Fédérale de Lausanne, Switzerland with a thesis about wireless communication from an architectural perspective. Before joining the IXDM, she held a Postdoc position at the Department of Architecture, Theory and Philosophy of Technics (ATTP), Technical University, Vienna, Austria, exploring the convergence of architecture and the digital. Her research interests revolve around combining computational processes with the built environment and exploring ways to communicate communication process-

es. She edited two books, *Ghosts of Transparency* 2019 and *Unpleasant Design* 2013. She writes about computational modelling, feminist hacking, and posthuman networks in design and architecture

Webpage: https://www.fhnw.ch/en/people/selena-savic

CHEN TZUNG-WEN

Professor at the Department of Sociology, National Chengchi University, Taipei, Taiwan. He was trained and worked as an electronic engineer for about ten years. Then he changed his discipline to sociology. In 2008 he obtained his PhD at IEP (Institut d'Etudes Politiques à Paris), France. In 2021 he was assigned as Chair of the Department of Sociology at National Chengchi University. He has accomplished intense sociological studies on biomedical, electronic, and environmental innovations in the past two decades. He has carried out more than ten consecutive research projects financed by the Taiwanese Ministry of Science and Technology. Some of these projects are related to visual regimes in technological innovations. In the same year he was a visiting scholar at the Seoul National University, South Korea. One of his major contributions to the domestic community is the Chinese translation of Pierre Bourdieu's Manet (more than 700 pages). His current research focuses on visual sociology, economic sociology and sociology of science and technology.

Webpage: https://sociology.nccu.edu.tw/PageStaffing/Detail?fid=588&id=788

THOMAS HUNDT

Prof. Dipl.-Ing., studied mechanical engineering in Munich and architecture in Stuttgart, Germany. Together with Dipl.-Ing. Ingo Zirngibl he founded the creative agency "jangled nerves" in 1998 which up to now won more than 250 design awards. He is engaged in 'Communication Architecture' in international and intercultural projects and has developed and implemented communication concepts, immersive spaces, interactive experiences, films, and artistic media installations for museums, exhibitions, showrooms, trade fair shows, and events as creative director and responsible producer. Since 2004, he holds a professorhip for Media and Space and teaches at Stuttgart University of Applied Sciences, Faculty of Architecture and Design. In 2019, he opened a second creative agency 'jangled nerves China Ltd. ' in Shanghai, PRC. He is a member of the ADC Germany and on the Advisory Board of 'Raumwelten', a platform for scenography, architecture and media.

Webpage: https://janglednerves.com/en/office/profile/

Letizia Bollini

Architect with a PhD in Industrial Design and Multimedia Communication at the Politecnico di Milano, Italy. Associate professor of communication/inter-

action/transmedia design at the Faculty of Design and Arts, Free University of Bolzano since 2020. Previously Researcher/Assistant Professor at the Department of Psychology, Milano-Bicocca University and Contract Professor of MD/BD in computer science, University of Bologna as well as faculty member of the HEC in user experience design, Politecnico di Milano. Since 1995 she has been working on multimodal user interfaces, interaction, user experience and visual design, as well as socio-spatial representation, both as a Researcher and as a designer/consultant with a strong focus on technologies evolution, the human-centred approach and accessibility. She was a member of the AIAP (Italian Association for Visual Design) board and the Italian representative at ICOGRADA (1999-2009). From 2017 to 2021 she led the commission of Theoretical, historical, critical research and publishing projects at the ADI (Italian Association of Industrial Design), Design Index preselection of the Compasso d'Oro Award and from 2011 to 2016 the Communication/Visual design commission (2011-16).

Webpage: https://www.unibz.it/en/faculties/design-art/academic-staff/person/44032-letizia-bollini

Emiliano Guaraldo

Member of the Philosophy and Cultural Heritage Department at Ca' Foscari University, Venice, Italy. His research focuses on the visual culture of the anthropocene, with a particular interest in the relationship between visual arts and the production of technical and scientific images. He obtained a PhD from University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, USA, under the supervision of Serenella Iovino and Federico Luisetti. His thesis, Estrazione: the Anthropocene and the Emergence of Italian Petro-imagination, analyzes the carbon fossil imaginary in 20th-century Italian visual and literary cultures, with an emphasis on ENI's corporate cinema and the works of Pier Paolo Pasolini and Michelangelo Antonioni. From 2019 to 2020, he was a Research Assistant and and held lectures on Italian literature and culture at the University of St. Gallen, Switzerland. He then was a Postdoctoral Fellow in Environmental Humanities at the Center for the Humanities and Social Change, Ca' Foscari, where he completed the project 'The Aesthetics of Extinction and Climate Change: visualizations of the anthropocene at the Venice Biennale', in which he catalogued artistic investigations of the anthropocene presented at the Venice Biennale Arte since the 1970s. In 2021 he worked as Research Assistant for the project 'Art and Design Practices in Communicating Climate Change' at the Free University of Bolzano. He is a core member of 'Unruly Topologies', a Swiss-based collaborative artistic and trans-disciplinary research group exploring Earth beings and toxic landscapes. He is the co-editor of the forthcoming volume Italian Science Fiction and the Environmental Humanities, published by Liverpool University Press, UK.

Webpage: https://hscif.org/guaraldo/

AUTHORS

VALENTINA MARCHESELLI

Postdoc Research Fellow in the Sociology and Social Research Department, University of Trento, Italy. She studied Cultural Anthropology at the University of Bologna and obtained her PhD in Science and Technology Studies at the University of Edinburgh, UK. Her PhD research project drew insight from the ethnographic study of astrobiologists' practices to address questions related to the emergence of new fields of inquiry and the social construction of scientific concepts such as 'life'. She then moved to the University of Milan (2018-2020), where she focused on the social dynamics of interaction and coordination in music performance as part of the research project 'Culture and Cognition at Work'. Her current research project at the University of Trento focuses on the role of sensoriality and embodiment in exploring other celestial bodies.

Webpage: https://webapps.unitn.it/du/en/Persona/PER0225879/Curriculum

Charudatta Navare

PhD candidate at the Homi Bhabha Centre for Science Education, Tata Institute of Fundamental Research, Mumbai, India. He is broadly interested in the rhetoric of science, and Science, Technology, and Society (STS) studies. His work currently focuses on the interplay between biology and ideology, attempting to uncover the part ideologies play in the hidden curriculum in biology education. He is the author of *A Germ of an Idea: Microbes, Us, and Microbes within us*, a non-fiction comic book published in 2021 by Eklavya Foundation, India.

Webpage: https://www.hbcse.tifr.res.in

EMANUEL MATHIAS

Visual artist based in Leipzig, Germany. He studied Fine Arts in Photography at the Academy of Fine Arts, Leipzig and received his Diploma in 2009. In 2011 he obtained his Master's Apprentices in Fine Arts. Currently he is a PhD candidate, holding a Bauhaus Doctoral Scholarship at the Bauhaus University, Weimar, Germany. His thesis 'On the Margins of the Field' is a peripheral aesthetic observation of the scientific sphere of field research primatology questioning a reasonable distance between the observer and the observed. He was an Assistant Researcher for the research project 'Image. Text. Politics', image-text-based artistic practices and new politics of seeing by Prof. Eva Leitolf, Free University Bolzano, Italy (2020 – 2021). Previously he was a Guest Researcher at the Max-Planck Institute for Evolutionary Anthropology, Leipzig (2018 – 2020), Artistic/Research Assistant at the University of Art and Design Halle/Saale, with a teaching position for Bachelor and Master Studies at the Department of Communications Design and and the Photography Department (2014 – 18). He has participated in numerous national and international solo and group exhibitions and received several awards

and scholarships. He is a member of the German Society for Artistic Research, Berlin and the German Society for Aesthetics, Münster.

Webpage: http://www.emanuelmathias.com

ELISABETTA RATTALINO

Art Historian and Adjunct Lecturer on Visual Culture at the Faculty of Design and Art, Free University of Bolzano, Italy. Her research is directed towards artistic practices and visual cultures from 1945 to the present day, focusing on rural environments, especially in Italy. Her work has been supported by CIMA (Centre for Italian Modern Art), New York (2018), the Margaret and Alfred Forrest Trust, Edinburgh, UK (2014-2016) and the Master dei Talenti della Società Civile, Turin, Italy (2013-2014), and was presented internationally. She holds a PhD from the School of Art History, University of St Andrews, Scotland (2018), where she was a Teaching Assistant in Art History (2017-2018). She has also been a Postdoc Research Fellow at Free University of Bolzano (2018-2021) working on the scientific project 'Visualisation: Impact on Practice' (P.I. Prof. Schmidt-Wulffen). Since 2010, she collaborates with socially-engaged artists and arts organisations in Italy (BAU, Bolzano; Cittadellarte - Fondazione Pistoletto, Biella; Kaninchenhaus, Turin) and Scotland (Deveron Projects, Huntly).

We bpage: https://www.unibz.it/it/faculties/design-art/academic-staff/person/39990-elisabetta-rattalino

STEPHAN SCHMIDT-WULFFEN

German Philosopher and Art Historian who works in the epistemology of arts and design. Until 2021 he was Full Professor in Art Theory at the Faculty of Design and Art, Free University of Bolzano, Italy. As Rector of the Academy of Fine Arts, Vienna (2002-2011) and as Head of the New Design University, St.Pölten, Austria (2011-2016) he was engaged in the future development of universities. He studied philosophy, linguistics and communication design in Cologne, Constance and Wuppertal and received his PhD in 1987. Between 1992 and 2000, he was the director of the Kunstverein in Hamburg and taught at different universities in Europe and the US. He is also a Honorary Professor for Aesthetics and Artistic Knowledge at Zeppelin University, Friedrichshafen, Germany.

Webpage: https://www.zeppelin-university.com/chairs/aesthetik/

Alexandra Cosima Budabin

Political Scientist and Postdoctoral Research Fellow at the Platform Cultural Heritage Cultural Production at the Faculty of Design and Art of the Free University of Bozen-Bolzano. After studying art history, history, social thought and humanities at Harvard University and New York University she received her PhD in Politics from the New School for Social Research, New York in 2012. She

held the Leon Milman Memorial Fellowship at the Centre for Advanced Holocaust Studies, United States Holocaust Memorial Museum, Washington, DC. She is a Senior Researcher at the Human Rights Center of the University of Dayton, OHIO. Her research on the everyday politics of human rights, humanitarianism, and development has appeared in World Development, Perspective on Politics, New Political Science, Human Rights Quarterly, Journal of Human Rights, Humanity, and Third World Quarterly. Her first book Batman Saves the Congo: How Celebrities Disrupt the Politics of Development with Lisa A. Richey, was published by the University of Minnesota Press. Her current research looks at anti-racist practices related to cultural heritage, transnational advocacy around conflict-related sexual violence, and commodification practices of humanitarian actors.

Webpage: https://www.unibz.it/it/faculties/design-art/academic-staff/person/37025-alexandra-cosima-budabin

WALTRAUD KOFLER ENGL

After studies in art history and history at the Universities of Innsbruck, Austria and Florence, Italy she received her PhD in 1985. From 1986 she worked as an Inspector of the Monuments Office of the Autonomous Province of Bolzano, Italy, and from 1994 as Director of the Department for the Preservation of Monuments; until 2007 she was also Curator for the province of South Tyrol. She was intensively engaged with the restoration, conservation and conversion of architectural and artistic monuments as well as with cultural heritage education and mediation issues. Since September 2018, she is the Director of the newly established platform 'Cultural Heritage Cultural Production' at the Faculty of Design and Art, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano. Her publications concern the history, reception and restoration of buildings and works of art in Tyrol, medieval murals, historic gardens, and the 'uncomfortable' heritage of fascist architecture and art in Bolzano. Her current research focuses on architecture and the art of the interwar period and fascism, testimonies of WWI and the militarisation of the landscape, conflicts and 'uncomfortable' cultural heritage, as well as on historical gardens in South Tyrol. In 2022, she was Guest Professor at the Institute of History of Architecture and Monument Preservation at the University of Innsbruck. She is a member of the working group for theory and teaching of monument conservation in Germany and a member of ICOMOS (International Council on Monuments and Sites) Germany.

Webpage: https://www.unibz.it/it/faculties/design-art/academic-staff/person/40059-wal-traud-kofler

GAIA PICCAROLO

Architect and Architectural Historian. She received her PhD in History of Architecture and Urbanism at Politecnico di Torino, Italy with a thesis on Lucio Costa's public charges under Vargas' regime in Brazil. She is currently Postdoctoral Research Fellow at the Platform Cultural Heritage and Cultural Production

at the Faculty of Design and Art, Free University of Bozen-Bolzano, Italy. She has been an Adjunct Professor of History of Architecture, Urban Planning and Landscape at Politecnico di Milano since 2010 and since 2013, has been a member of the editorial board of the architectural magazine 'Lotus International'. She curated several exhibitions in important institutions and published extensively on contemporary architecture, urban planning and landscape, with particular reference to Brazilian modernism and the circulation of architectural ideas and models between Europe and the Americas. Recently she has been investigating the disciplinary encroachments between architecture and landscape in the contemporary debate, and has been devoting her interest to heritagization processes and heritage concepts and practices. Her research has been presented in Europe, the US, Canada and Brazil in international seminars and conferences.

We bpage: https://www.unibz.it/it/faculties/design-art/academic-staff/person/44617-gaia-piccarolo

INGRID KOFLER

Currently Researcher and Assistant Professor in Sociology at the Faculty of Design, Free University of Bolzano, Italy. Previously she was a Senior Researcher at the Center for Advanced Studies and the Institute for Regional Development at Eurac Research, Bolzano. She has led various inter-and transdisciplinary projects using participatory, qualitative and quantitative methods for empirical social research. Her recent project 'Tiny Fop Mob' – a real-world laboratory on sustainability in the building sector - was financed by the E.R.D.F. (European Regional Development Fund). Another project she works on is 'FuturCraft', financed by Interreg IT/AT. From 2019 to 2021, she was a Contract Lecturer of Sociology of Culture and Arts at the B.S.B. (Burgundy School of Business) in Dijon, France. In 2019, she also was a Visiting Researcher at the 21st Century Global Dynamics Institute, University of California, Santa Barbara, USA and the HWWI (Hamburgisches Weltwirtschaftsinstitut), Hamburg, Germany. She holds a PhD in Sociology from the Paris Descartes University, France and Roma Tre University, Italy. Working for her PhD in France, she was a Research and Teaching Assistant at the University of Rennes. She is particularly interested in social change, culture, design, globalization, gender, sustainability, work, digitalization, migration, governance, social networks, future literacy and real-world laboratories.

We bpage: https://www.unibz.it/it/faculties/design-art/academic-staff/person/18815-ingrid-kofler

ILARIA RICCIONI

Tenured Researcher and Professor in General Sociology at the Faculty of Education, Free University of Bolzano, Italy since 2007. She holds a national PhD as Associated Professor since 2018. She received her PhD in Social Theory and Research at La Sapienza University, Rome. Her thesis dealt with social anticipation

by futurist avant-garde of contemporary postmodern society. She has been visiting Researcher at MSH, Paris, France (2004); at the Department of Musiksoziologie, Universität Wien, Austria (20013-2014); at the Department of Sociology, University of Texas, San Antonio, USA (2018-2019); carrying out research on avant-garde arts as a social anticipator of future societies and collective imagination, arts as manifestation and activator of social resistance and social change. Her topics develop in the wide perspective of critical theory and empirical social research, and she has been doing research and giving seminars in Europe, USA and Australia on social theory, cultural studies and the social impact of arts. She has also been developing empirical research on multiculturalism in bilingual regions, art as a factor for social cohesion, resistance and political participation. Recently she worked on a research project on the social and political impact of the theatre. Currently she is the President of RC37 (research committee) on Sociology of the Arts, ISA(International Sociological Association).

Webpage: https://www.unibz.it/it/faculties/education/academic-staff/person/14335-ilaria-riccioni

ROLAND BENEDIKTER

Co-Head of the Center for Advanced Studies, Eurac Research, Bolzano, Italy, Research Professor in residence of Multidisciplinary Political Analysis, Willy Brandt Centre of Wroclaw University, Poland. He is a member of the Future Circle at the Federal German Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF) for the Federal German Government in Berlin, Germany and regular member of the European Academy of Sciences and Arts. He also holds the Unesco Chair in Interdisciplinary Anticipation and Global-Local Transformation at Eurac Research in Bolzano.

Webpage: https://www.eurac.edu/en/institutes-centers/center-for-advanced-studies

JOE RAVETZ

Systems thinker and designer, and leader of the Future-Wise Cities theme for the Manchester Urban Institute, University of Manchester, UK. As Director of the global program 'Peri-cene' (peri-eco-urban anthropocene), he works on sustainable cities and regions, foresight and transition management, climate/environment policy, social technology and economic development. From this he developed the Synergistics Method for mapping of collective intelligence, and design of transformative pathways, using creative visual thinking. He is author of two landmark texts: Deeper City: collective intelligence and the pathways from smart to wise and the previous City-region 2020: integrated planning for a sustainable environment. He advises policy (UN, European Commission, national & regional agencies) and works with business as a principal of the strategy/foresight firm SAMI Consulting. He is a former architect planner and development consultant, and is also Visiting Professor at the University of Baja California, Mexico, and

the University of Brawijaya, Indonesia. He has now set up the Collaboratorium ('Laboratory for Collective Intelligence'), working at the frontiers of cognitive systems development, aiming to map and design pathways in urban economic and political systems, 'from smart to wise'.

Webpage: https://www.research.manchester.ac.uk/portal/joe.ravetz.html

CRISTINA ORSATTI

Anthropologist and Interdisciplinary Researcher with a multidisciplinary profile, and a mother tongue expert in English. She holds a Postdoc in Sustainable Urban Regional Futures. A PhD in Built and Human Environment – an interdisciplinary work between Social Anthropology and Construction focused on the sustainable regeneration of two peripheral areas (IT-UK), which she obtained from Salford University UK, an MSc in Medical Anthropology research (Brunel University, UK) a first upper degree, in Art and Cultural Anthropology (University of Bologna). In the last 25 years, Cristina has worked between Italy and the UK with multi agencies and multi-stakeholders teams in academic and applied research. She has worked in rural, alpine and urban areas on large-scale regeneration plans, sustainable development, and climate change strategies for cities and regions. She has worked on regeneration projects with architects, planners, geographers, and ecologists. At Glasgow, she accomplished research on the evaluation of public and social policy and inclusive growth in major capital investments. Cristina worked as a Researcher for applied research centres such as the Centre of Alpine Ecology and the Centre for Research and Innovation of the Edmund Mach Foundation, Trento, IT (2009-2012). She was a Research Fellow at the University of Glasgow (2015-2018) and the Universities of Salford (2001-2007), Manchester and Trento. At G.U. she teamed up with economists, sociologists, architects, ecologists, the industry, SMEs, artists' networks and local communities. Currently she is a Professor of Cultural Anthropology and Anthropology of Art at the Brera Fine Arts Academy in Milan. She is a member of the Italian Applied Society of Italian Anthropologists, the American Anthropological Association, the Order of Journalists.

Webpage: https://independent.academia.edu/OrsattiCristina

BERENICE GOLDING

Senior Lecturer in Social Sciences in the Division of Social Sciences, School of Human and Health Sciences and School Director for Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. She joined the University in 2001. Successfully completing the access course 'Women into Science and Technology (WITS) as a mature student, she obtained her BSc (Hons) Health with Community Studies, achieving Honours First Class in 2005, followed by a Postgraduate Certificate in Education, the MSc in Social Research and Evaluation (Social Work) and a PhD in 2011 for her research that explored egg sharing, an assisted reproduction treatment, and women's experience of providing informed consent within the context of egg sharing arrangements.

Her research interests centre around health and wellbeing, including black, Asian and ethnic minority communities, equality, diversity, inclusion, and human rights.

Webpage: https://pure.hud.ac.uk/en/persons/berenice-golding

ELIZABETH F. CALDWELL

Learning Developer for the Faculty of Health and Medicine at Lancaster University, UK. She is a graduate of University College London, where she completed her PhD in Anthropological Genetics in 2005. She is a Certified Leading Practitioner of Learning Development (CeLP) and a Senior Fellow of the Higher Education Academy (SFHEA). Her research is multidisciplinary, and her research interests centre around social and cultural studies of science and medicine, with a particular focus on education. Her recent work has included examining the visual culture of children's science books and studying health communication in picturebooks for children.

Webpage: https://www.research.lancs.ac.uk/portal/en/people/elizabeth-caldwell(8b600377-7f5a-4946-8705-ef9a0aa1c7f9).html

SARAH FALCUS

Reader of Contemporary Literature in the School of Arts and Humanities at the University of Huddersfield, UK. She is also Director of Graduate Education for the School. She joined the University in 2008, having completed a PhD at the University of Aberdeen and worked at a number of other UK universities. She is interested in the intersection of ageing studies and literary studies. She is the co-author (with Katsura Sako) of *Contemporary Narratives of Dementia: Ethics, Ageing, Politics* (2019) and the co-editor (with Katsura Sako) of *Contemporary Narratives of Ageing, Illness, Care* (2022). Her current work centres on two main areas: children's literature and ageing; and ageing/the life course in science and speculative fiction. She is the primary collaborator on the project 'Ageing and Illness in British and Japanese Children's Picturebooks 1950-2000: Historical and Cross-Cultural Perspectives', funded by the Japan Society for the Promotion of Science. She is also the Co-Director of the Dementia and Cultural Narrative Network.

Webpage: https://pure.hud.ac.uk/en/persons/sarah-falcus

LISA CAPITINI

Co-founding member of the 'Scientia atque Usus' Research Center for Generative Communication and Research Fellow in the Department of Political and Social Sciences of the University of Florence, as well as a PhD student at the Department of Agriculture, Food, Environment and Forestry. Her research interests concern communication strategies based on the Generative Communication method oriented towards the generation of value in the field of agriculture, not only in economic terms but also in social, historical, political, and cultural as-

pects. She is also interested in automation processes and how artistic and visual representations can generate new imaginaries, enhance people's creative-design qualities, or induce specific behaviours.

Webpage: https://www.sau-centroricerche.org/eng/

Viola Davini

Researcher and founding member of the 'Scientia atque Usus' Research Center for Generative Communication. She is Research Fellow at the Center for Generative Communication, University of Florence, Italy, and holds a PhD in Innovation and Rural Development. She has expertise in the design of communication strategies to strengthen relationships between the university and local communities. She is involved in communication strategies aimed at encouraging a model of applied research that has important social impact: listening to the needs of people in a certain territory, coordinating projects in different fields, mainly healthcare and well-being. She is author and member of the editorial staff of the journal 'I Quaderni di sAu', a journal that engages in a new idea of research to promote social and cultural development and innovation.

Webpage: https://www.sau-centroricerche.org/eng

ILARIA MARCHIONNE

Research Fellow at the University of Florence, Italy. At the Center for Generative Communication, University of Florence, she deals with the methodological and operational processes of projects that are linked to design thinking and prototyping. She graduated in Modern Literature in 2013 and obtained a Master's degree in communication theories at the University of Florence in 2015, followed by a PhD in Communication, Research, Innovation at La Sapienza University, Rome in 2019, with a thesis entitled "The generative paradigm to communicate innovation and technology transfer in Europe". Her research activities focus on the application of the generative paradigm of communication onto different research fields: the relationship between man and machine; experimentation with forms of digital writing; the development of training models that enhance the role of each person involved in the training process; the development of citizens' health literacy.

Webpage: https://www.sau-centroricerche.org/eng

Eugenio Pandolfini

Researcher and founding member of the 'Scientia atque Usus' Research Center for Generative Communication, and Researcher at the Center for Generative Communication, University of Florence, Italy. He holds a Master degree and PhD in Advanced Design, Polytechnic School of Architecture, Madrid, Spain. He is an expert in designing and developing community building strategies in

healthcare and designs and develops research projects and interventions at the research center, especially those related to healthcare and well-being. His research commitment and his work currently centre around the study, analysis and experimentation of generative communication strategies between organizations and territories. He is author and member of the editorial staff of the journal 'Quaderni di sAu'.

Webpage: https://www.sau-centroricerche.org/eng

MARCO SBARDELLA

Researcher and founding member of the 'Scientia atque Usus' Research Center for Generative Communication. Adjunct Professor in Sociology of Culture and Communication at the Faculty of Political and Social Sciences, University of Florence, Italy, and Research Fellow at the Center for Generative Communication in this university and in the consortium called PIN, Italy.

He studied communication sciences and received his PhD in Sustainable Management of Agricultural and Forestry Resources in 2015 with a thesis about the role of new technologies in territorial marketing strategies. He designs and develops research projects and interventions related to sustainable behavior, agriculture and rural development, healthcare and well-being, international cooperation, governance and participation, and mobility. His current research commitment is the study and analysis of sustainable communication, derived from the application of the generative paradigm of communication to the field of sustainability, individual and collective well-being and functional to overcome the so-called 'Paradox of Sustainability'. He is author and member of the editorial staff of the journal 'I Quaderni di sAu'.

Webpage: https://www.sau-centroricerche.org/eng

Joost van Loon

Holder of the Chair of General Sociology and Sociological Theory at the Catholic University, Eichstätt-Ingolstadt, Germany since 2010. Before, he was Professor of Media Analysis at Nottingham Trent University, UK. In his teaching and research he focuses on social, cultural and political theory, empirical philosophy, science and technology, media, religion and risk. He is the author of over a hundred publications, with the two landmark texts *Risk and Technological Culture: Towards a Sociology of Virulence* (Routledge, 2002) and *Media Technology: Critical Perspectives* (McGraw-Hill/Open University Press, 2008). He also is editor in chief of the international journal 'Space and Culture'.

 $We bpage: \ https://www.ku.de/ggf/soziologie/all gemeine-soziologie-und-soziologischetheorie$

AUTHORS

BRIAN RAPPERT

Full Professor of Science, Technology and Public Affairs at the University of Exeter, UK. At the time of writing this volume he was the Head of the Department of Sociology, Philosophy and Anthropology. His long-term interest has been the examination of the strategic management of information, particularly in relation to armed conflict. His books include Controlling the Weapons of War: Politics, Persuasion, and the Prohibition of Inhumanity; Biotechnology, Security and the Search for Limits; and Education and Ethics in the Life Science. More recently he has been interested in the social, ethical, and political issues associated with researching and writing about secrets, as in his books Experimental Secrets (2009), How to Look Good in a War (2012) and Dis-eases of Secrecy (with Chandre Gould 2017). His most recent line of research examines the relation between revelation and concealment through undertaking an autoethnographic study of learning to perform as an entertainment magician.

Webpage: https://brianrappert.net

Scientia

- 1. PANDOLFINI, E., Il paesaggio nascosto. Quale comunicazione nei luoghi della complessità. 2019, x-294 pp.
- 2. BARALDI, C., I sistemi della comunicazione. 2020, x-264 pp.
- 3. On the Interplay of Images. Imaginaries and Imagination in Science Communication. Edited by Andreas Metzner-Szigeth. 2022, x-440 pp. con 44 figg. n.t. e 16 tavv. a colori f.t.



The dynamics of images, imaginaries and imagination play a crucial role – in academic as well as in public discourses! What kind of essential relations exist between different expressive forms and patterns of thought? How can we understand the principles determining the ways in which their dynamics take effect – in the practice of scientists and engineers, and at their interfaces with politics, economy, culture and the

public? Which options do we have to make good use of our insights?

Despite of the diversity of topics – treated with either more interest in theoretical reflections, programmatic considerations or practice-oriented descriptions – all contributions to this volume share a common interest: to raise our awareness and understanding of the generative capacities of these processes.

Exploring this prolific interplay is of utmost importance for expanding our ability to identify emerging opportunities, to create future perspectives, and to assess the societal consequences of scientific and technological developments. This expansion is indispensable if we really want to be clear about our preferences whilst shaping the ongoing stream of inventions and innovations according to our values.